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THE LAW OFFICES OF

TIMOTHY MCCANDLESS
Timothy McCandless, Esq. (SBN 147715)

15647 Village Drive
Victorville, California 92392
(760) 733-8885 Telephone (909) 494-4214 Facsimile
Attorney for Plaintiffs, insert names

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 






)  Case No.
)

Plaintiffs,

)  

)  SECOND AMEDED COMPLAINT 
)  






)   
 
v.




)   






)  



)  
Defendants.

)  






)         






)







)   
____________________________________)


Plaintiffs, interest names (“Plaintiffs”) allege:  
PREFATORY ALLEGATIONS

1.  
This Complaint is filed under the Truth in Lending Act, 15 U.S.C. §1601,
 (hereinafter the ‘Act”) to enforce the Plaintiffs’ right to rescind a consumer credit transaction, and to recover statutory damages, reasonable attorney’s fees, and costs by reason of the Defendants’ violations of the Act and Regulation Z, 12 C.F.R. § 226 (hereinafter “Regulation Z”).
2.  
Jurisdiction is conferred on this Court by 15 U.S.C. § 1640(e) and 28 U.S.C. §§ 
1331, 1337.  The Court has authority to issue a declaratory judgment by virtue of 28 U.S.C. § 2201. 

3.
Plaintiff(s), insert names, is and at all times mentioned herein was a resident of the State of California.


4.
Plaintiff(s), insert names, is and all times mentioned herein was a resident of the State of California.


5.
The property which is the subject of this action is the primary dwelling of the Plaintiffs.  Its address is insert address, insert city, California insert zip code (hereinafter the “Property”). 




6
Defendant, COUNTRYWIDE BANK, a division of TREASURY BANK, N.A., is and at all times mentioned herein was, an unknown business entity which conducts and has conducted substantial business within California and this judicial district.


7.
Defendant, TREASURY BANK, N.A., is and at all times mentioned herein was an unknown business entity which conducts and has conducted substantial business within California and this judicial district.


8.
Plaintiffs substitute CAM FINANCIAL, INC, for DOE 1 in this action.  Defendant, CAM FINANCIAL, INC. is and at all times mentioned herein was a California corporation which conducts had has conducted substantial business within California and this judicial district.


9.
At all times relevant hereto, Defendants, in the ordinary course of their business, regularly extended or offered to extend consumer credit for which a finance charge is or may be imposed or which, by written agreement, is payable in more than four installments.


10.
Plaintiffs are ignorant of the true names and capacities of Defendants sued herein as DOES 2 to 10, inclusive, and therefore sue these Defendants by such fictitious names.  
Plaintiffs will amend this Complaint to allege their true names and capacities when ascertained.  Plaintiffs are informed and believe and thereon allege that each of the fictitiously named Defendants is responsible in some manner for the occurrences herein alleged, and that Plaintiffs’ injuries and right to compensations herein alleged were proximately caused by the acts, errors, and omissions of said fictitiously named Defendants and each of the.


11.
Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and based thereon allege, that Defendants, and each of them, were the agents, employees, partners, joint venturers, owners, principals, and employers of the remaining Defendants, and each of them, are, and at all times herein mentioned were, acting within the course and scope of that agency, partnership, employment, ownership, or joint venture.  Plaintiffs are further informed and believe and based thereon allege that the acts and conduct herein alleged of each such Defendant were known to, authorized by, and/or ratified by the other Defendants, and each of them.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
(Against Defendant Countrywide Band and DOES 2 to 10)

(Rescission and Damages Under 15 U.S.C.  § 1635)

12.
Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate by reference the allegations of paragraphs 1 through 11, inclusive, as though set forth at length herein again.

13.
On or about insert date of contract, Plaintiffs entered into a consumer credit transaction with Defendant Countrywide in which the extended consumer credit was subject to a finance charge and which was initially payable to Defendants.  The transaction was referenced as loan number insert loan number.  The loan was for insert loan amount.

14.
As part of this transaction, Defendants obtained a security interest in the Property.  The security interest was not created to finance the acquisition or initial construction of Plaintiffs’ home.

15.
Defendant, CAM FINANCIAL, INC. was the mortgage broker in connection with said loan.  CAM FINANCIAL, INC., was the business partner and agent of Defendant Countrywide Bank, and Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and based thereon allege, that Countrywide Bank authorized Defendant CAM FINANCIAL, INC., to underwrite the loan.


16.
In the course of this consumer transaction, Defendants violated 15 U.S.C. § 1635(a) and Regulation Z, § 226, by failing to deliver to Plaintiffs two copies of a notice to rescind that:



(1)
Identified the transaction date;



(2)
Clearly and conspicuously disclosed the date the rescission period expired.


17.
Plaintiffs were only provided with a single, uncomplete Notice of Right to Cancel, a true and correct coy of which is attached hereto as “Exhibit A”.


18.
Plaintiffs will amend this Complaint when additional Truth in Lending violations are discovered. 


19.
By reason of the foregoing violations, Plaintiffs have a right of rescission for three (3) years from the date of the transaction pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1635(f).


20.
In addition to the foregoing violations of the Truth in Lending Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1601, et. seq., the Truth in Lending Disclosure Statement failed to reflect all fees associated with the loan, including a $ insert amount appraisal fee.  Also, Defendants used inflated appraisals for the subject loan.


21.
On insert date, 200*, Plaintiffs served Defendants, and each of them, with a letter giving Defendants notice of Plaintiffs’ election to rescind the loan.  A true and correct copy of the date of notice, 200*, notice is attached hereto as “Exhibit B”.  The notice further demanded that Defendants return all money given as earnest money, down payment, or otherwise and take any action to reflect the termination of the above-described deed of trust.


22.
As a direct and proximate cause of Defendants’ violations of the law, Defendants were compelled to rescind the loan.  As a further direct and proximate cause of such violations, Defendants were required to return such sums as required under 15 U.S.C.  § 1635(b).

23.
Defendants, and each of them, failed to rescind the loan or return the monies owed to Plaintiffs within the requisite twenty (20) days, thereby constitution and additional Truth in Lending violation.


24.
By virtue of the foregoing violations of the Truth in Lending Act, Plaintiffs’ right to rescind the said loan was extended from three (3) days to three (3) years after consummation of the transaction.  15 U.S.C.  § 1635(f).


25.
As a direct and proximate cause of Defendants’ violations under the Truth in Lending Act, Plaintiffs have incurred attorney’s fees which amount will be proven at the time of trial.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

(Against Defendant Countrywide Bank and DOES 2 to 10)

(Damages Under 15 U.S.C.  § 1640)
26.
Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate by reference the allegations of paragraphs 1 through 25, inclusive, as though set forth at length herein again.
27.
As a result of the foregoing disclosure violations and Defendant Countrywide Bank’s failure to rescind the loan under Section 1635, Plaintiffs are entitled to actual and statutory damages under 15 U.S.C. § 1640 in an amount to be proved at the time of trial.

28.
Further, as a direct and proximate cause of Defendants’ violations under the Truth in Lending Act, Plaintiffs have incurred attorney’s fees which amount will be proven at the time of trial.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
(Against All Defendants and DOES 2 to 10)

(Fraud)

29.
Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate by reference the allegations of paragraphs 1 through 28, inclusive, as though set forth at length herein again.
30.
Prior to the insert date of closing, closing, Defendants, and each of them, made material misrepresentations and non-disclosures which led to the Plaintiffs’ damages herein.

31.
Defendant CAM FINANCIAL, INC.’s misrepresentations and non-disclosures were made by and through its broker, Wayne Cox.

32.
Defendant Countrywide Bank’s misrepresentations were made in a Good Faith Estimate prepared by Countrywide and sent to plaintiffs on or about insert date of estimate, 200*.

33.
In addition, Countrywide Bank and CAM FINANCIAL, INC., were working in concert together to perpetrate the fraud on Plaintiffs as described herein.

34.
Defendants engaged in false and misleading advertising in connection with the subject loan.  Wayne Cox, on behalf of CAM FINANCIAL, INC., made the following material misrepresentations Plaintiffs:
(1)
That Plaintiff’s home was valued significantly higher than its true appraised value by using a fraudulent appraisal.
(2)
That the subject loan was a great loan and would have a very low interest rate.

(3)
That the loan would be at 1% interest rate for a period of time.

(4)
That the prepayment would be 3% in the first year, 2% in the second year, 1% in the third year.

(5)
That the prepayment penalty was necessary for Plaintiffs to qualify for the subject loan, which was not true.

(6)
That the 1% interest rate would last only 1 month.

(7)
That Plaintiffs’ interest payment would adjust beyond 4.125% to 8% per month.

(8)
That the Good Faith Estimate and amortization schedule given to Plaintiffs at the closing was substantially different than the good faith estimate given to Plaintiffs prior to the closing.

(9)
That the reason a prepayment penalty was included was to generate a higher YSP.

36.
Countrywide Bank misrepresented to Plaintiffs the terms of the loan by 

sending a Good Faith estimate on or about insert date of estimate, 200* that was substantially different than the good faith estimate given to Plaintiffs at the closing.

37.
Countrywide Bank and CAM FINANCIAL, INC., were business partners, and Defendants, and each of them, ratified, consented to, and encouraged the wrongful conduct described above.


38.
Countrywide incentivized CAM FINANCIAL, INC., to perpetrate the above-described fraud on Plaintiffs by paying CAM FINANCIAL, INC., a yield spread premium which would not have otherwise been paid to CAM FINANCIAL, INC., to the same extent.


39.
Countrywide knew that CAM FINANCIAL, INC., was perpetrating a fraud on Plaintiffs, but concealed the fraudulent scheme from Plaintiffs.

40.
Plaintiffs justifiably relied on the foregoing representations and non-disclosures in closing on the said loan.


41.
At the time Defendants made the foregoing misrepresentations, they knew them to be false.  In addition, they knew that Plaintiffs would rely upon the misrepresentations and non-disclosures in closing on the loan.


42.
Plaintiffs did not discover the foregoing fraud until a date within three (3) years of the date of filing of this complaint.


43.
As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ fraud, Plaintiffs closed on the loan and suffered damages in an amount which will be proven at the time of trial.


44.
Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and upon such information and belief allege, that the actions of Defendants, as alleged herein, were not due to inadvertence or excusable neglect, but rather were an intentional scheme by Defendants to deprive Plaintiffs of property, 
legal rights or to otherwise cause injury to Plaintiffs, such as to constitute malice, oppression or fraud under California Civil Code §3294, thereby entitling Plaintiffs to punitive damages in an amount appropriate to punish or set an example of said Defendants.  That as herein alleged, said 
Defendants’ conduct was willful, malicious and intended to cause damage to Plaintiffs and done with a conscious disregard for Plaintiffs’ rights.

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION

(Against All Defendants and DOES 2 to 10)

(Violations of Business and Professions Code §17200, et. seq.)

45.
Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate by reference the allegations of paragraphs 1 through 44, inclusive, as though set forth at length herein again.


46.
Beginning in February 2005 and continuing to the present time, Defendants committed acts of unfair competition as defined by Business and Professions Code § 17200, by engaging in the following practices:
(1)
Perpetrating a “bait and switch” on consumers by selling them on a very low interest rate loan and then changing the terms prior to closing to less favorable ones for the borrowers;

(2)
Selling borrowers on a very low interest rate without disclosing to borrowers that the loan is a negative amortization one which will cause the principal balance to increase monthly;

(3)
Artificially inflating appraisals in order to put borrowers into more expensive loans, thereby generating more money for the lenders and brokers.


47.
These acts and practices, as described in the previous paragraph, violate Business and Professions Code § 17200 because their policies and practices described above violate The Truth in Lending Act and Regulation Z and California Civil Code § 1709, and consequently, constitute and unlawful business act of practice within the meaning of Business and Professions Code § 17200.
48.
The harm to Plaintiffs and to members of the general public outweighs the utility of Defendants’ policy and practices, consequently, constitute an unlawful business act of practice within the meaning of Business and Professions Code §17200.

49.
Further, the foregoing conduct threatens an incipient violation of a consumer law, including, but not limited to, TILA, or violates the policy or spirit of such law or otherwise significantly threatens or harms competition.


50.
Defendants’ practices described above are likely to mislead the general public, and therefore, constitute a fraudulent business act of practice within the meaning of Business and Professions Code §17200.


51.
The Defendants’ unfair, unlawful, and fraudulent business practices and false and misleading advertising present a continuing threat to members of public in that other consumers will be defrauded into closing on similar fraudulent loans. 


52.
Plaintiffs and other members of the general public have no other adequate remedy of law.


53.
As a result of the aforementioned acts, Plaintiffs have lost money or property and suffered injury in fact.  Defendants  received and continues to hold Plaintiffs’ money and other members of the public who fell victim to Defendants’ scheme.

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION

(Against all Defendants and DOES 2 To 10)

(Violations of Business and Professions Code § 17500, et. seq.)


54.
Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate by reference the allegations of paragraphs 1 through 53, inclusive, as though set forth at length herein again.

55.
As shown above, Defendants have committed acts of untrue and misleading advertising as defined by Business and Professions Code § 17500, by engaging in the said acts and practices with intent to induce members of the public to enter into contracts for the purchase of home loans.

56.
The acts of untrue and misleading advertising by Defendants present a continuing threat to members of the public.  Plaintiffs and other members of the general public have no other adequate remedy of law.


57.
Plaintiffs have been forced to hire legal counsel to prosecute this claim and have incurred attorneys’ fees as a result.

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION

(Against All Defendants and DOES 2 to 10)

(Breach of Fiduciary Duty)


58.
Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate by reference the allegations of paragraphs 1 through 53, inclusive, as though set forth at length herein again.


59.
As Plaintiffs broker, CAM FINANCIAL, INC. owed Plaintiffs a fiduciary duty of care.  Plaintiffs reposed the utmost faith, confidence, and trust in CAM FINANCIAL, INC. and its agent, Wayne Cox.


60.
By misrepresenting to Plaintiffs the true value of the Property, by misrepresenting the terms and consequences of the loan, and by the other wrongful conduct described herein, CAM FINANCIAL, INC. breached the fiduciary duty owed to Plaintiffs..

61.
As a direct and proximate result of said Defendants’ breach of fiduciary duty, Plaintiffs closed on the loan and suffered damages in the amount which will be proven at the time of trial.


62.
Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and upon such information and belief allege, that the actions of said Defendant, as alleged herein, were not due to inadvertence or excusable neglect, but rather were an intentional scheme by Defendant to deprive Plaintiffs of property, legal rights or to otherwise cause injury to Plaintiffs, such as to constitute malice, oppression or fraud under California Civil Code § 3294, thereby entitling Plaintiffs to punitive damages in an amount appropriate to punish or set an example of said Defendant.  That as herein alleged, said Defendants’ conduct was willful, malicious and intended to cause damage to Plaintiffs and done with a conscious disregard for Plaintiffs’ rights.


WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs pray for judgment against Defendants, and each of them, as follows:


1.
For rescission of Loan Number insert number under 15 U.S.C. §1635(a) and (b);


2.
For all sums to be paid under  15 U.S.C. §1635(b);

3.
For damages under 15 U.S.C. §1635(b);


4.
For attorney’s fees pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §1640(b)


5.
For punitive damages under the 3rd and 6th causes of action;


6.
For attorneys’ fees under the 1st, 2nd, 4th, and 5th causes of action;

7.
Pursuant to Business and Professions Code §§ 17203 and 17535, that Defendants        
be ordered to restore to Plaintiffs and the general public all funds acquired by means of any act or practice declared by this Court to be unlawful or fraudulent or to constitute unfair competition under Business and Professions Code § 17200 et. seq., § 17500, et. seq.

8.
For pre-judgment interest at the legal rate from the time of injury;


9.
For costs of suit incurred herein; and


10.
For such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and proper.
Dated: 
December 27, 2008




THE LAW OFFICES OF

TIMOTHY MCCANDLESS

                                                                                           By _____________________________
Timothy McCandless, Attorney for Plaintiffs insert names

1
CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

